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From: sky sky < > 
Sent: Wednesday, January 3, 2024 12:41 PM
To: tpbpd/PLAND <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>

Subject:冠亞汽車工程有限公司

城規會：

現呈交申請規劃編號 A/YL-ST/662 的補充資料，以取代 2024 年 1 月 2 日發出的兩個

電郵。

[See attachment "A_YL-ST_662 - FI.pdf"]

傳送自 Android 上的 Yahoo Mail(See attached file: A_YL-ST_662 - FI.pdf)
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Relevant Extracts of Town Planning Board Guidelines for
Application for Developments within Deep Bay Area

under Section 16 of the Town Planning Ordinance (TPB PG-No. 12C)

According to TPB PG-No. 12C, the Site falls within the Wetland Buffer Area (WBA).  Extracts
of land use concept and development guidelines are summarised as follows:

(a) the intention of the WBA is to protect the ecological integrity of the fish ponds and
wetland within the Wetland Conservation Area and prevent development that would have
a negative off-site disturbance impact on the ecological value of fish ponds; and

(b) within the WBA, for development or redevelopment which requires planning permission,
an ecological impact assessment (EcoIA) would need to be submitted.  Some local and
minor uses (including temporary uses) are however exempted from the requirement of
EcoIA.



Appendix III of RNTPC
Paper No. A/YL-ST/662

Previous s.16 Applications covering the Application Site

Approved Applications

No. Application No. Use(s)/Development(s) Date of Consideration
(RNTPC/TPB)

1. A/YL-ST/156 Temporary Repair Workshop for Lorries,
Tractors, Trailers and Private Cars with
Ancillary Emergency Repair Services for a
Period of 3 Years

22.12.2000
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

2. A/YL-ST/255 Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop for
Lorries, Tractors, Trailers and Private Cars
with Ancillary Emergency Repair Services
for a Period of 3 Years

19.12.2003
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

3. A/YL-ST/328 Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop for a
Period of 3 Years

19.1.2007
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

4. A/YL-ST/378 Renewal of Planning Approval for
Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop for a
Period of 3 Years

4.12.2009
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

5. A/YL-ST/426* Renewal of Planning Approval for
Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop for a
Period of 3 Years

23.11.2012
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)
(Revoked on 4.6.2013)

6. A/YL-ST/452 Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop with
Office for a Period of 3 Years

31.10.2014
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

7. A/YL-ST/510 Renewal of Planning Approval for
Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop with
Office for a Period of 3 Years

27.10.2017
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

8. A/YL-ST/577^ Renewal of Planning Approval for
Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop with
Office for a Period of 3 Years

18.9.2020
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)
(Lapsed on 31.10.2023)

* denotes permission revoked
^ denotes permission lapsed
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Similar s.16 Applications in the vicinity of the Site within the same “R(D)” Zone on
the Approved San Tin Outline Zoning Plan No. S/YL-ST/8 in the Past Five Years

Approved Applications

No. Application No. Use(s) / Development(s) Date of Consideration
(RNTPC/TPB)

1. A/YL-ST/535 Temporary Parking of Lorry Cranes for Sale
with Ancillary Maintenance Workshop for a
Period of 3 Years

18.1.2019
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

2. A/YL-ST/594 Temporary Logistics Centre with Ancillary
Container Vehicle Park and Car Repair
Workshop, Warehouse for Cold Storage and
Car Beauty Service for a Period of 3 Years

12.11.2021
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

3. A/YL-ST/613 Temporary Parking of Lorry Cranes for Sale
with Ancillary Maintenance Workshop for a
Period of 3 Years

4.3.2022
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)

4. A/YL-ST/614* Temporary Vehicle Park for Goods Vehicles
and Container Vehicles and Tyre Repair Area
with Ancillary Canteen and Site Office for a
Period of 3 Years

18.3.2022
Approved by RNTPC

(3 years)
(Revoked on 18.9.2023)

* denotes permission revoked
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Government Departments’ General Comments

1. Land Administration

Comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department (DLO/YL,
LandsD):

� no adverse comment on the application;

� the application site (the Site) comprises Old Schedule Agricultural Lots (OSALs) and
Government Land (GL).  The OSALs are held under the Block Government Lease
which contains the restriction that no structures are allowed to be erected without prior
approval of the Government;

� the GL within the Site is covered by a Short Term Tenancy No. 2831 for the purposes
of “Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop with Office”;

� the private land of the following lots are covered by Short Term Waivers (STWs) as
below:
STW No. Lot No.

(D.D. 105)
Purposes

3984 354 Temporary Vehicle Repair Workshop with Office
4632 210 Temporary Cargo Handling and Forwarding Facilities

and Open Storage of Containers with Vehicle Repair
Workshop

• advisory comments as detailed in Appendix V.

2. Traffic

Comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T):

� having considered the applicant’s submission including the further information, he has
no adverse comment on the application from traffic engineering point of view;

� should the application be approved by the Town Planning Board (the Board), an
approval condition should be imposed to the planning approval requiring that no
vehicle is allowed to queue back to or reverse onto/from public road at any time during
the planning approval period; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix V.

3. Landscape

Comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning Department
(CTP/UD&L, PlanD):

� with reference to the aerial photo of December 2022, the Site is situated in an area of
rural landscape character.  The surrounding area comprises temporary structures, open
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storages to the immediate north and southwest, and ponds and scattered tree groups to
the further north and northeast of the Site.  With reference to the aerial photos of 2022
and 2020, there is no significant change in the surrounding landscape character since
the last application (No. A/YL-ST/577) was approved in 2020.  The applied use is not
incompatible with the surrounding landscape setting in the proximity;

� with reference to site photos taken in November 2023, the Site is fenced off and hard
paved. Temporary structures, trucks and existing trees along the boundary are observed
within the site.  According to the “Tree Location Plan” submitted under the application,
there are 6 nos. of trees within the site and the applicant will properly maintain those
trees.  Noting that the current application has the same site boundary and site layout as
the last application No. A/YL-ST/577, further adverse impact on landscape character
and resources arising from the applied use within the Site is not anticipated. As such,
she has no objection to the application from landscape planning perspective; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix V.

4. Drainage

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services Department (CE/MN,
DSD):

� no objection in principle to the planning application from drainage operation and
maintenance point of view;

� the drainage proposal submitted under the application is the same as the previous
approved Planning Application No. A/YL-ST/577 and the applicant implemented the
drainage facilities on-site;

� upon a joint site inspection by DSD with the applicant, the implementation of the
drainage system is considered satisfactory; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix V.

5. Fire Safety

Comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS):

� no objection in principle to the application subject to fire service installations (FSI)
being provided to the satisfaction to the D of FS;

� the FSI proposal is considered acceptable to the Fire Services Department; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix V.

6. Other Departments

The following government departments have no objection to/no adverse comment on the
application and their advisory comments, if any, are in Appendix V:
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(a) Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways Department;
(b) Chief Engineer/Railway Development 2-1, Railway Development Office, Highways

Department;
(c) Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation;
(d) Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development Department (CEDD);
(e) Head of Geotechnical Engineering Office, CEDD;
(f) Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department;
(g) Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department;
(h) Commissioner of Police; and
(i) District Officer (Yuen Long).
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Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) The application site (the Site) falls within the boundary of San Tin Technopole.  The Site
may be resumed by the Government and that the proposed operation at the Site may be
terminated at any time during the planning approval period for implementation of
government projects;

(b) to note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department
(DLO/YL, LandsD) that:

� should planning approval be given to the subject planning application, the Short Term
Tenancy (STT)/ Short Term Waiver (STW) holder(s) will need to apply to LandsD
for modification of the STT/STW conditions where appropriate.  The owner(s) of lots
without STW will need to immediately apply to LandsD to permit the structure(s) to
be erected or regularise any irregularity on-site, if any.  Besides, given the applied use
is temporary in nature, only erection of temporary structure(s) will be considered.
Application(s) for any of the above will be considered by LandsD acting in the
capacity of the landlord and there is no guarantee that such application(s) will be
approved.  If such application(s) is approved, it will be subject to such terms and
conditions, including among others the payment of rent or fee and administrative fee
as considered appropriate by LandsD;

(c) to note the comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T) that:

� the Site is connected to public road network via section of a local access which is not
managed by Transport Department.  The land status of the local access and private
lot(s) should be clarified with LandsD by the applicant.  The management and
maintenance responsibilities of the local access road should be clarified with relevant
lands and maintenance authorities accordingly;

(d) to note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department (CHE/NTW, HyD) that:

� HyD shall not be responsible for the maintenance of any access connecting the Site
and Castle Peak Road – San Tin; and

� adequate drainage measures should be provided at the Site to prevent surface water
running from the Site to the nearby public roads and drains;

(e) to note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP) that:

� the applicant should be advised to implement the relevant mitigation measures and
requirements in the latest “Code of Practice on Handling the Environmental Aspects
of Temporary Uses and Open Storage Sites” to minimise potential environmental
impacts on the surrounding areas;

(f) to note the comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning
Department (CTP/UD&L, PlanD) that:
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� the approval of the application does not imply approval of tree works, if any, such as
pruning, transplanting and feeling.  Application for any tree works should be
submitted direct to relevant authority(ies) for approval;

(g) to note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services
Department (CE/MN, DSD) that:

� the applicant shall ascertain that all existing flow paths would be properly intercepted
and maintained without increasing the flooding risk of the adjacent areas;

� no public sewerage maintained by CE/MN, DSD is currently available for connection.
For sewage disposal and treatment, agreement from DEP shall be obtained;

� the applicant should consult DLO/YL regarding all the proposed drainage works
outside the lot boundary in order to ensure the unobstructed discharge from the Site
in future; and

� all the existing drainage facilities should be maintained by the applicant at his own
cost.  The applicant should ensure and keep all drainage works on site under proper
maintenance at all times;

(h) to note the comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS) that:

� the installation/ maintenance/ modification/ repair work of fire service installations
shall be undertaken by a Registered Fire Services Installation Contractor (RFSIC).
The RFSIC shall after completion of the installation/ maintenance/ modification/
repair work issue to the person on whose instruction the work was undertaken a
certificate (F.S. 251) and forward a copy of the certificate to the D of FS; and

� if the proposed structure(s) is required to comply with the Building Ordinance (BO)
(Cap. 123), detailed fire service requirements will be formulated upon receipt of
formal submission of general building plans;

(i) to note the comments of Head of Geotechnical Engineering Office, Civil Engineering
and Development Department (H(GEO), CEDD) that:

� the applicant should submit the building works plans to the Buildings Department
(BD) for approval as required under the provisions of BO;

(j) to note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department (CBS/NTW, BD) that:

� there is no record of approval granted by the Building Authority (BA) for the existing
structures at the Site;

� if the existing structures are erected on leased land without approval of BD (not being
New Territories Exempted Houses), they are unauthorised building works (UBW)
under BO and should not be designated for the use under the application;

� for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by the Building
Authority (BA) to effect their removal in accordance with BD’s enforcement policy
against UBW as and when necessary.  The granting of any planning approval should
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not be construed as an acceptance of any existing building woks or UBW on the Site
under BO;

� before any new building works (including containers and open sheds as temporary
buildings) are to be carried out on the Site, prior approval and consent of BA should
be obtained, otherwise they are UBW.  An Authorised Person (AP) should be
appointed as the co-ordinator for the proposed building works in accordance with BO;

� any temporary shelters or converted containers for office, storage, washroom or other
uses are considered as temporary building which are subject to the control of Part VII
of the Building (Planning) Regulations (B(P)R);

� the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street and
emergency vehicular access in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of the B(P)R
respectively;

� if the Site does not abut on a specified street of not less than 4.5m wide, its permitted
development intensity shall be determined under Regulation 19(3) of B(P)R at
building plan submission stage; and

� detailed checking under the BO will be carried out at building plan submission stage.


